# MINUTES OF THE WAVERLEY TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MEETING HELD VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE ON THURSDAY, 28 SEPTEMBER 2023



#### **Voting Members Present:**

Cr P Masselos Waverley Council – Chair

Mr D Gojak Representing Kellie Sloane MP, Member for Vaucluse

Sgt A Leeson NSW Police – Eastern Suburbs Police Area Command – Traffic Services

Mr V Le Transport for NSW – Network and Safety Officer

Mr P Pearce Representing Marjorie O'Neill MP, Member for Coogee

#### **Also Present:**

Mr B Gidies Transdev John Holland – Traffic and Events Manager

Mr R Mucciacciaro Transdev John Holland

Cr L Fabiano Waverley Council – Deputy Chair Cr T Kay Waverley Council – Deputy Chair

Mr N Zervos Waverley Council – Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services

Mr A Karki Waverley Council – Traffic Engineer
Mr K Magistrado Waverley Council – Traffic Engineer

At the commencement of proceedings at 10.03 am, those present were as listed above.

### **Apologies**

Apologies were received from Ms K Lewis (Transport for NSW – Manager, Communication and Stakeholder Engagement).

#### **Declarations of Interest**

The Chair called for declarations of interest and none were received.

## Adoption of Previous Minutes by Council - 24 August 2023

The recommendations contained in Part 1 – Matters Proposing that Council Exercise its Delegated Functions – of the minutes of the Waverley Traffic Committee meeting held on 24 August 2023 were adopted by Council at its meeting on 12 September 2023.

#### **ITEMS BY EXCEPTION**

The following items on the agenda were dealt with together and the Council Officer's Proposal for each item was unanimously supported by the Committee:

TC/C.02/23.09	Bronte Road, Bronte – Council Authorised Vehicle Parking Zone.
TC/C.03/23.09	Chesterfield Lane, Bronte – 'No Stopping' Restrictions.
TC/C.04/23.09	9 Pacific Avenue, Tamarama – Construction Zone.
TC/C.05/23.09	88-94 Ebley Street, Bondi Junction – Construction Zone.

#### PART 1 – MATTERS PROPOSING THAT COUNCIL EXERCISE ITS DELEGATED FUNCTIONS

NOTE: The matters listed under this part of the agenda propose that Council either does or does not exercise the traffic related functions delegated to it by TfNSW. The recommendations made by the Committee under this part of the agenda will be submitted to Council for adoption.

# TC/C STATE ELECTORATE OF COOGEE

TC/C.01/23.09 Ebley Street, Bondi Junction - Temporary Road Closure for Crane Dismantling (A02/0617-07)

#### **COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:**

## That Council:

- 1. Approves the temporary closure of Ebley Street, Bondi Junction, between Bronte Road and Ann Street, from 5 am to 7 pm on Sunday, 5 November 2023, in accordance with the Traffic Management Plan attached to the report, subject to the applicant:
  - (a) Notifying NSW Police, NSW Ambulance Service, NSW Fire and Rescue and Transdev John Holland buses.
  - (b) Notifying local residents and businesses seven days prior to the event.
  - (c) Using traffic controllers accredited by Transport for NSW.
  - (d) Providing Council with a pre- and post-dilapidation report of the condition of road pavements, kerb and adjacent assets along the truck access route.
  - (e) Covering all costs associated with closing the road, including traffic control.
  - (f) Employing user-pays police for the duration of the closure.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to amend the planned closure date if needed.

## WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to the addition of a new clause 1(g) such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

#### That Council:

- 1. Approves the temporary closure of Ebley Street, Bondi Junction, between Bronte Road and Ann Street, from 5 am to 7 pm on Sunday, 5 November 2023, in accordance with the Traffic Management Plan attached to the report, subject to the applicant:
  - (a) Notifying NSW Police, NSW Ambulance Service, NSW Fire and Rescue and Transdev John Holland buses.
  - (b) Notifying local residents and businesses seven days prior to the event.
  - (c) Using traffic controllers accredited by Transport for NSW.
  - (d) Providing Council with a pre- and post-dilapidation report of the condition of road pavements, kerb and adjacent assets along the truck access route.
  - (e) Covering all costs associated with closing the road, including traffic control.
  - (f) Employing user-pays police for the duration of the closure.
  - (g) Applying for a road occupancy licence.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to amend the planned closure date if needed.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

## TC/C.02/23.09 Bronte Road, Bronte - Council Authorised Vehicle Parking Zone (A14/0145)

#### **COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:**

That Council installs a 5.4 metre 'No Parking, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted, 7 am-7 pm' zone on the northern side of Bronte Road, Bronte, at the start of the Bronte Beach parking area.

## WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

## TC/C.03/23.09 Chesterfield Lane, Bronte - 'No Stopping' Restrictions (A14/0145)

#### **COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:**

That Council:

- 1. Relocates the 'No Stopping, 5 am– 9 am Fridays' zone in Chesterfield Lane, Bronte, adjacent to 78 Chesterfield Parade, 3 metres to the south.
- 2. Changes the 'No Stopping, 5 am— 9 am Fridays' zone on the north-eastern corner of 78 Chesterfield Parade to a 'No Stopping' zone.

## WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

## TC/C.04/23.09 9 Pacific Avenue, Tamarama - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

#### **COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:**

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 12 metre 'No Parking, 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in front of 9 Pacific Avenue, Tamarama.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone as necessary.

### WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

#### TC/C.05/23.09 88-94 Ebley Street, Bondi Junction - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

#### **COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:**

That Council:

1. Installs a 22.5 metre 'No Parking, 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in Gray Street, Bondi Junction, adjacent to 88–94 Ebley Street.

2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone as necessary.

## WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

## TC/V STATE ELECTORATE OF VAUCLUSE

Nil.

## TC/CV ELECTORATES OF COOGEE AND VAUCLUSE

TC/CV.01/23.09 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations on Street Poles - Parking Restrictions (A11/0853)

#### **COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:**

#### That Council:

- 1. Installs electric vehicle charging stations on street poles at the following locations for a 12-month trial:
  - (a) Simpson Park on the southern side of Macpherson Street, Bronte, opposite 34-36 Macpherson Street.
  - (b) Barracluff Park on the southern side of Warners Avenue, North Bondi, adjacent to 1-3 Warners Avenue.
  - (c) Queens Park on the southern side of Queens Park Road, Queens Park, opposite 66 Queens Park Road.
  - (d) Eastern side of Bronte Road, Waverley, opposite 137 Bronte Road.
  - (e) Northern side of King Street, Bondi, adjacent to 16 Bennett Street.
  - (f) Northern side of Murriverie Road, North Bondi, opposite 73A Murriverie Road.
  - (g) Northern side of O'Donnell Street, North Bondi, adjacent to 37-39 O'Donnell Street.
  - (h) Eastern side of Wiley Street, Waverley, adjacent to 50 Wiley Street.
- 2. Installs poles, line marking and '4P, 8 am–10 pm, Electric Vehicles Only While Charging' signage for one car space at each of these locations.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the signage should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

4. Officers prepare a report to the Traffic Committee following the trial with findings and recommendations.

## WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

## TC/CV.02/23.09 Sculpture by the Sea 2023 - Special Event (A19/0394)

#### **COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:**

That Council approves the Traffic Control Plans for the Sculpture by the Sea 2023 event attached to the report, subject to the applicant:

- 1. Obtaining NSW Police Force approval.
- 2. Submitting a Traffic Management Plan to Transport for NSW in accordance with the NSW Government's Guide to Traffic and Transport Management for Special Events.

## WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to being amended to read as follows:

## That Council:

- 1. Approves the Traffic Management Plans for the Sculpture by the Sea 2023 event attached to the report, subject to:
  - (a) The applicant obtaining NSW Police Force approval.
  - (b) The applicant submitting a Traffic Management Plan to Transport for NSW in accordance with the NSW Government's Guide to Traffic and Transport Management for Special Events.
  - (c) The applicant amending the Traffic Guidance Scheme to include additional water-filled barriers and cones to narrow the entrance of Mirimar Avenue at the intersection of Hewlett Street.
  - (d) Council officers notifying all active construction sites within the Traffic Management Plan of the following:
    - (i) Permit restrictions for large vehicle access.
    - (ii) Strict compliance with the one-way arrangement.
    - (iii) Compliance checks will be undertaken throughout the duration of the event.
    - (iv) All permit applications will be assessed based on impact to the one-way arrangement and any alternative access requirements approved by Council must be adhered to.

- (v) Any additional traffic control measures needed for site access will be at the cost of the permit applicant, including traffic controllers at the Hewlett Street and Mirimar Avenue intersection.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the traffic control measures as necessary.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative, TfNSW representative and Waverley Council representative (Chair).

# PART 2 – TRAFFIC ENGINEERING ADVICE

NOTE: The matters listed under this part of the agenda seek the advice of the WTC only and do not propose that Council exercise its delegated functions at this point in time (though they may or may not require it in the future).

TC/TEAC	STATE ELECTORATE OF COOGEE			
Nil.				
	STATE ELECTORATE OF VAUCLUSE			
Nil.				
TC/TEACV	ELECTORATES OF COOGEE AND VAUCLUS	<u> </u>		
Nil.				
THE MEETING CLOSED AT 10.19 AM.				
		D AND CONFIRMED		
	MAYC 17 OC	R TOBER 2023		